46094-7-II

Consolidated with 47074-8-II

SUPREME COURT

OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

JOHN J. HADALLER

An individual, Appellant (plaintiff)

V

.MAYFIELD COVE ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, a Washington non-profit corporation, DAVID A. and SHERREY LOWE, individually and the marital community thereof; RANDY FUCHS An individual; CLIFFORD and SHEILAH SCHLOSSER, individually and the marital community thereof: and MAURICE and CHERYL C. GREER, individually and the marital community thereof

Respondents (defendants)

APPELLANT'S PETITION FOR REVIEW

John J. Hadaller

135 Virginia Lee Lane

Mossyrock, Wa. 98564

(360) 520-1756 ph

Jhconst10@gmail.com

Appellant Pro Se

I.	INTRODUCTION AND IDENTITY OF PETITIONER
II.	COURT OF APPEALS DECISION2
III.	ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW
	Should this court accept review per Rap13.4(b)(3) &(4)
	Because Hadaller's 14th amendment, Article. 19§1 and
	article.1 §3 and 12 rightswere violated in a manner that
	affects all HOA members?3
IV.	STATEMENT OF THE CASE
	A. PARTIES3
	B. FACTUAL BACKGROUND5
	C. PROCEDURAL HISTORY11
VI AR	GUMENT15
1111	is Court should accept this review, per the provisions RAP 13.4(b)(3)&(4), of this constitutional issue that ects a large share of Washington homeowners

TABLE OF CASES

Armstrong v. Manzo, <u>380 U.S. 545</u> , 550 (1965)
Burr v. Chase, 157 Wash. 393(1930)16
Condo. Ass'n v. Apartment Sales Corp., 144 Wn.2d 570 . (2001)
Gerber v. Longboat Harbour North Condominium, Inc.,
724 F.Supp. 884 (M.D.Fla. 1989)15
Goldberg v. Kelly, <u>397 U.S. 254</u> , 267–68 (1970)
Greene v. Lindsey, <u>456 U.S. 444</u> (1982)
Mullane v. Central Hanover Trust Co., <u>339 U.S. 306</u> , 314 (1950)16
Robinson v. Hanrahan, <u>409 U.S. 38</u> (1974)16

TABLE OF CONSTITUTIONAL CITATIONS

	15,16,19,20			
U.S.C.A.Const. Amend. XIV,	15,16,19			
Washington Const. Art1§12 Washington Const. Art.XIX§1	18,20			
TABLE OF STATUTES				
RCW 6.13.080(6)	passim			
TABLE OF RULES				
	3,15,20			
RAP 13.4 (b)(3)	3,15.20			
RAP 13.4 (b)(4)				

1. INTRODUCTION AND IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Petitioner John J. Hadaller (Hadaller) seeks review of the decision designated in part II of this partition.

This lawsuit arises from the control of development of a lakefront parcel of land originally owned and under development by Hadaller, prior to Defendant Fuchs and Lowe's purchase of lots in that development. They forced a homeowners association (HOA) over the development and (mis)used the provisions of the HOA statutes (RCW 64.38) to defraud Hadaller of his investments in that development (his retirement plan) and even his home.

This review is in regards to his home, and the core issue for review of a first impression of the law that chips further away at constitutional rights, is that the Court erroneously found that the notice provision of RCW 6.13.080(6) regarding homesteads was not violated by the HOA. Thus the HOA did not have to provide Hadaller with his constitutionally protected right of a homestead and notice. Division II of the Appellate Court first impression review held that RCW 6.13 provides no requirement of notice to a homeowner preexisting before the HOA was imposed over the home, Thus he/she may ignorantly lose their homestead right for squabbling with the HOA. RCW 6.13.080(6)¹ was enacted in 1988 to protect HOA's from legitimate loss and requires notice to

¹It was codified as RCW 6.13.00(5) at that time

owners of their potential to lose their homestead so as to provide a homeowner to decide whether the risk of opposing a HOA is worth pursuing. A holding on this issue from this Court would affect thousands of Washington HOA members and clarify the argument of whether the HOA has clear responsibility to provide "meaningful notice" as the legislature obviously intended.

A review and holding by this Court is also called for because County and city planning jurisdictions are increasingly forcing developers to assign the costs for ongoing maintenance of roads, water systems and other common areas to the buyers instead of public provisions as was the case in the mid 1900's. HOA's are now the widely used governments that control new development and appears to be increasing in the future. Div. II's holding encourages fraud, in fact Hadaller was defrauded of over \$800,000, this Court has a responsibility to make a holding of the law that discourages more unethical manipulation of the HOA laws for profit such as the record will show occurred here.

II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

Hadaller seeks review of the unpublished decision filed on January 24, 2017, by Division II of the Court of Appeals, confirming the Superior Courts judgment.

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- 1. The Legislature denied the first draft of SHB 1329 which amended RCW 6.13.080(6)² because it did not give meaningful notice to prospective new owners under HOA government that they were derogating their homestead right. The bill passed only after the notice provision was added to it. Did the lower Courts error by finding/holding no meaningful notice is owed to preexisting homeowners when a new HOA is forced over the home?
- 2. The decisions made below prevented Hadaller from his constitutionally mandated homestead exemption, by not entitling him to a meaningful notice of sacrificing it to a HOA. Those fundamental rights effect tens of thousands of Washington homeowners under HOA rule. Should this Court accept discretionary review under RAP 13.4 (b) (3)& (4)?

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Parties

Plaintiff/Petitioner John J. Hadaller (Hadaller) is an

individual who owned twelve of the eighteen Mayfield

² It was codified as RCW 6.13.080(5) at that time See Legislative history in appendix pages 4-8 of Appellants Opening Brief from appellate Court.

lakefront acres he had installed roads, water systems, and utilities upon. He had a first right of refusal on the other six care parcel(Lot 2), which was sandwiched between his two six acre parcels (Lots 1 and 3) he developed.

Defendants Clifford and Sheliah Schlosser and Maurice and Cheryl Greer. Are the first two owners of the first two ½ acre lots Hadaller sold to them. Their lots were burdened by an easement at the water front which accessed the six acre segregation survey lot 2, that easement prohibited subdivision by code. The dominant (lot 2) property was owned by a third party who had promised sale of it to Hadaller only, it was the big prize in this plot because it had a potential of \$750,000 of smaller lots.

Defendant Randy Fuchs, HOA co-creator/ secretary, is an excavation contractor/land developer who bought a home in the development from Hadaller upon agreeing to and signing a covenant stating only Hadaller could add said lot 2 to the private road (Virginia Lee Lane) Hadaller built. A year later Fuchs began to buy (the by then substantially developed) lot 2 from the owner, whom was under contract to sell it Hadaller for less than Fuchs offered. When Fuchs came to the legal conclusion lot 2 had no easement for subdivision he quit the sale.

Private party/ HOA co creator/HOA attorney, David Lowe

(Lowe) and wife Sherry purchased three of the four lots, Hadaller had developing at the time Fuchs attempted to jump Hadaller's claim, shortly after completion of them. Lowe arrived unsolicited and bought 3 lots, with a large real estate contract³, in three hours contemplation in October, 2007.

Mayfield Cove Estates Homeowners Association was contemplated by Hadaller when he was forced to make the roads and water systems privately owned and maintained by code. A maintenance fee and structure for collection of it were required before approval for construction was granted. Hadaller provided for a homeowners association but did not incorporate one. It was his intent to manage the CCR's as the secretary until all his lots sold, then expected to have a cooperation of all future owners to finish the covenant as they deemed fit.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

This begins when Appellant John J. Hadaller (Hadaller) bought two of three six acre plots of land (segregation survey lots 1 and 3) and obtained a first right of refusal to the third (segregation survey lot 2)⁴, in January 2002, from the Fortman Trust (Fortman). Shortly thereafter it was rezoned to allow for ½ acre lots. Although the land fronts approximately 1,100 feet on

³ Which he later substantially erased with his attorney fee awards ⁴ CP323¶1 Ex 3

Mayfield Lake, in Lewis County, only about 300 feet of it is not a high(80'+-) virtual cliff to the water. Hadaller chose the parcel that contained that 300 feet of lower bank that is practical to access to a dock and nearest to an area where a very nice swim beach exists to ultimately build his home which his homestead is part of.

But before moving on to that parcel in 2005⁵, he first moved onto segregation lot 1 in May 2002 and short platted it into four lots. He recorded CCR's to maintain the road, water system and provide for dock maintenance. He recorded that first plat in September 2003⁶. He sold lot 1 (101 Virginia Lee Lane)to Clifford and Sheliah Schlosser (Schlosser)in October 2003⁷. He sold lot 2 (105 Virginia Lee Lane)to to Maurice and Cheryl Greer (Greer) in July 2004⁸.

Hadaller lived on what became lot 3 (106 Virginia Lee Lane) from May 2002 until he moved to what became his present homestead land, in January 2005, which was and still is 135 Virginia Lee Lane⁹ living there from January 2005¹⁰ until the Sheriff ejected him in March 2016. It is part of segregation lot 3.

⁵ EX 17 Pg12 Ex 40 (Note date and address)

⁶ CP 323 ¶2 & Ex 4 & the relative CCR's were rerecorded in 2007 on a second plat and in the record at EX 12 see Pg 4

CP 324 ¶7

⁸ CP 324 ¶8

⁹ Ex 40 note address and date

¹⁰ Ex 40 Ex17

Back to the first plat, Hadaller retained lot 4 (104 Virginia Lee Lane) improving it with a residence and leasing it to Dean and Pam Rockwood¹¹ (Rockwood) Hadaller structured it that way and retained fee title to the lot at the time because the lot contained most of the first 100 feet of the road, he built, that accesses the plats and crosses segregation lot 2. After Hadaller was successful in platting, Fortman reneged on selling segregation lot 2 for the agreed price and was shopping around for as much as he could get in years 2003-2008, Hadaller had a right to match any price. The agreed price of \$66,333 in 2002 ballooned to \$250,000 when it sold to Lowe with Hadaller's improvements in 2008¹². Fortman's Segregation lot 2 did not reserve an easement that allowed for subdivision. Only Hadaller had the right to add it to his road, which was part of the original sale structure in 2002. The reserved easement to Segregation lot 2 and 3's would only support a single family homesite, by code. It burdened the Schlosser's and Greer's prime building sites and Hadaller orally promised the Schlosser's and Greer's he would move it when he purchased segregation lot 2 and that agreement became consideration for and part of a written covenant that amended the CCR's in 2006¹³.

¹¹ CP325 ¶12 CP 402 ¹² CP 326 ¶16 ¹³ Ex 12 Pg 11-13

In September 2005 Hadaller sold lot 3 of the first plat (106 V.L) to land developer Randy Fuchs¹⁴, which was done only under an agreement to Amend the CCR's to protect Hadaller's developers' interest¹⁵. The amendment was recorded in August 2006¹⁶ (Commonly known as the 2006 Amended Covenants), A year later, after Hadaller built the roads and utilities¹⁷, Fuchs attempted to overtake Hadaller's development rights by offering to buy segregation lot 2 from Fortman for \$200,000. Once Fuchs discovered the easement restrictions the lot was clouded with, he quit the sale. Fortman refused a purchase offer from Hadaller. Instead Fuchs bought a five acre sub-dividable parcel contiguous on the east site of Mayfield Cove Estates subdivision.

January 2005 Hadaller moved his residence

(homestead) on to segregation survey lot 3 which became 135

Virginia Lee Lane Mossyrock Wa¹⁸.

Two years after moving his homestead onto segregation lot 3, Hadaller recorded his second short plat and relative CCR's in April and May 2007¹⁹. He created four lots retaining the 3.42 acres which held his home and contains the only usable lake front in the

¹⁴ CP 324 ¶9

¹⁵ CP 649 -652 Cp 646-648

¹⁶ Ex 12 pg. 11-13

[&]quot; CP 326 ¶16

¹⁸ Ex 40 (note date and address) Cp 323 ¶1

¹⁹ Ex 12 Ex 6 and 5 (Exhibit 5 and 6 were filed backwards of their description)

area and is known as lot 4 of short plat 05-00017 and 135 Virginia Lee lane. That 3.42 acres provided for platting off 2 more waterfront lots with dock rights after May17, 2012. The plat also recorded three other ½ acre lots in May 2007.

In early October 2007 David Lowe called Hadaller out of the blue. He had no advertising of the lots for sale. David Lowe came and bought all three ½ acre lots that day in a matter of hours of discussion with a substantial real estate contract ²⁰ An appearance of friendship was portrayed by Lowe over the winter of 2007 and 2008.

In May 2008 The Lowes (mis)represented an arrangement with Hadaller to get him to not enjoin the sale when they bought segregation survey lot 2 from Fortman. When they reneged on the plan, that got Hadaller to not exercise his right of refusal, Hadaller became protective of the use of road and utilities he built across it to serve twelve home sites worth potentially \$750,000. Hadaller relied entirely on the 2006 Amended Covenant to protect his investments into the roads and utilities. ²¹

Without notice to Hadaller in the summer of 2008,

 $^{^{20}}$ [CP 325 ¶11] [CP 325- 326 ¶14] [CP 245 ¶93] [CP 346¶95] 21 CP 326¶16

Lowe secretly orchestrated drafting and filing new by-laws and articles of incorporation, to incorporate a HOA, filing them with the secretary of State on September 3, 2008²².

The first notice to Hadaller of Lowes actions was a December 12, 2008 letter Lowe sent to Hadaller of a pending meeting to install that newly incorporated HOA, Lowe and Fuchs created to overtake the subdivision. That meeting was held on December 30, 2008. It was attended by Lowe, Fuchs, Schlosser, and Hadaller which is all of the owners but the Greer's, they voted in proxy. All but Hadaller voted to adopt the articles of incorporation and by-laws, officially creating and incorporating the HOA for the first time.²³ Offices were officially established for the first time and elected. Voting; David Lowe as president, Randy Fuchs as secretary, Cheryl Greer as treasurer, Clifford Schlosser and Maury Greer were voted as board members. The new officers traded the easement to Lowes segregation lot 2 off of Schlosser's and Greer's waterfront portion of their lots and placed it on Virginia Lee Lane, recording it that day.²⁴ Hadaller opposed it all^{25} .

²²[Ex 19 Pg 1] ²³ [CP 325 ¶ 14] [Ex 19] ²⁴ CP 326-329 [Ex 19] CP ²⁵ [Ex 19]

Randy Fuchs filed a declaration falsely stating Hadaller forged Fuchs' signature to the 2006 Amended Covenant²⁹. Hadaller submitted declarations from two eyewitnesses that personally watched Fuchs sign the document³⁰. Hadaller counterclaimed for quiet title to challenge the easement trades and declaratory judgment of the 2006 Amended Covenant. At the show cause hearing the HOA argued that Hadaller's CCR's were deficient in the way they were not supported by articles of incorporation, identification of officers or means of electing officers. They argued that Hadaller in essence had not set up a valid homeowners association and the other owners desired to have by-laws defining the means of electing officers and managing a valid homeowners association.³¹ They argued the CCR's were an interim deficient set of CCR's at best. The Court agreed with the HOA, found the new HOA was duly formed and in power and ordered Hadaller to turn over the original documents³².

Hadaller quickly arranged (risking contempt) to have the 2006 amended covenant examined, then filed a report by a forensic document examiner confirming Fuchs' signature to be genuine³³.

On April 3, 2009 the Court dismissed Hadaller's

²⁹ CP 626-630

³⁰ Cp 646- 652

³¹ RP 01/29/2009 Pg 5 L. 12 – Pg 14 L. 21 ³² RP 01/29/2009 Pg 45 L. 15 – Pg 46 L. 18

³³ CP 631-652

counterclaims from the HOA suit for these quiet title issues without prejudice so they could be filed in what became this suit³⁴

On June 26, 2009 this suit was filed for declaratory judgment/quiet title asking the Court to confirm the 2006 amended covenants prevented anyone but Hadaller the right to add additional property to the roads he had built. Also to void the easement to segregation lot 2, (it was amended in 2010 to include confirmation of an easement across the Schlosser's and Greer's lot to benefit Hadaller's segregation survey lot 3³⁵)

In December 2009 a trial was held in co-case 09-2-0052-1 to determine the ownership of the water system #2. Although the issue of the 2006 amended Covenant was pled in this in this case the Association raised it by surprise while Hadaller's fact and expert witnesses where unavailable, the court voided the covenant and ultimately Lowe obtained \$144,000 from the judgment from Hadaller's foreclosed lots after transferring them from the HOA to personal ownership in 2012³⁶.

A five day Trial was held in April-May 2011, the Court found in favor of the defendants. Attorney fees were awarded and a

³⁴ CP126 L. 6- Cp 127 L10 ³⁵ Ex 19 CP 286 ¶3.11 CP 289

judgment was entered in favor of the Defendants on June 10, 2011.³⁷

On December 26, 2012 the HOA sent Hadaller a notice, which was the first time they noticed him of this, that his homestead exemption provided under RCW 6.13 was excepted to their judgment lien by operation of RCW 6.13.080(6). The HOA has admitted this fact and not contested it ³⁸

In January 2013 the bulk of Hadaller's personal property, valued at over \$80,000, including the vender's interest in the Schlosser REK was sold by sheriff sale³⁹. Mostly purchased by David Lowe, who paid for it with a tiny part of the judgments awards.

In May 2013 Hadaller's last two speculative lots were sold under the HOA suit judgment. They were appraised at \$72,000 each or \$144,000 total. 40 Six days after the foreclosure sale the "HOA" quit claimed them directly to David and Sherry Lowe. 41 which they still own.

On January 9, 2014 the sheriff sold Hadaller's residence.

³⁷ CP 514-517

³⁸ CP 411, 412 (last Paragraph)

³⁹ CP 518 L. 24-26 ⁴⁰ [Ex 368]

⁴¹ CP 45

Redemption and or supersedeas was financially beyond Hadaller's means, so on March10, 2016 the Sheriff delivered the deed for Hadaller's residence to David Lowe, in the name of the HOA.

On March 25, 2016 The Sheriff ejected Hadaller against his will from his home at 135 Virginia Lee Lane, Mossyrock, Wa.

The Lowes are now using it for their weekend/summer home.

On January 24, 2017 Division II affirmed the trial Courts ruling that Hadaller is not entitled to notice or homestead.

VI. ARGUMENT

A. This Court should accept this review, per the provisions in RAP 13.4(b)(3)&(4), of this constitutional issue that effects a large share of Washington homeowners

HOA government actions are subject to constitutional provisions and restrictions. *Gerber v. Longboat Harbour North Condominium, Inc.*, 724 F.Supp. 884 (M.D.Fla. 1989), That is because their strong governing hand can be enforced in the courts just as state and county governments are. Which is precisely what has happened in this case. Public interest is involved here because HOA membership is increasing rapidly.

In order for RCW 6.13.080(6) to be constitutional it must comply with due process of meaningful notice and be evenly applied to all citizens in the class it governs. U.S.C.A.Const.

Amend. V & XIV, Washington Const. Art1§3&12, Burr v. Chase, 157 Wash. 393(1930) Condo. Ass'n v. Apartment Sales Corp., 144 Wn.2d 570 (2001)

"Notice. An elementary and fundamental requirement of due process in any proceeding which is to be accorded finality is notice reasonably calculated, under all the circumstances, to apprise interested parties of the pendency of the action and afford them an opportunity to present their objections." *Mullane v. Central Hanover Trust Co.*, 339 U.S. 306, 314 (1950) "The notice must be sufficient to enable the recipient to determine what is being proposed and what he must do to prevent the deprivation of his interest". *Goldberg v. Kelly*, 397 U.S. 254, 267–68 (1970). Ordinarily, service of the notice must be reasonably structured to assure that the person to whom it is directed receives it. *Armstrong v. Manzo*, 380 U.S. 545, 550 (1965) ;U.S.C.A.Const. Amend. 14.Washington Const. Art1§12 *Robinson v. Hanrahan*, 409 U.S. 38 (1974); *Greene v. Lindsey*, 456 U.S. 444 (1982).

RCW 6.13.080(6) was enacted by the legislature with a clause that requires notice...meaningful notice⁴². The *Armstrong Id* Court described meaningful notice to be a notice that is provided in a timely manner so that the person receiving it may

⁴² See Legislative History in Opening brief from below appendix Pgs 4-8

follow appropriate action. In this case, contrarily, Hadaller was methodically, systematically groomed by a homeowner association president, who is a lawyer with over \$800,000 to gain (Lowe). Lowe set up the HOA over Hadaller's land against Hadaller's objection to the radical new amendments in the CCR's The HOA did not grant Hadaller a notice within 30 days that opposing the HOA actions will result in loss of Hadaller's homestead rights. It is admitted by the HOA they failed to give that required notice until December 26, 2012.

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