RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON

CLERK'S OFFICE

3/27/2017 9:16 am

RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY

No. 94189-1

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

JOHN J. HADALLER, an individual,

Petitioner

v.

MAYFIELD COVE ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, a Washington nonprofit corporation, et al.

Respondents.

ANSWER OF RESPONDENT MAYFIELD COVE ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

PETITION FROM COURT OF APPEALS NO. 46094-7-II

APPEAL FROM LEWIS COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT CASE NO. 09-2-934-0, THE HONORABLE JUDGE RICHARD L. BROSEY

David A. Lowe, WSBA No. 24,453 LOWE GRAHAM JONES^{PLLC} 701 Fifth Avenue, Suite 4800 Seattle, WA 98104 Lowe&LoweGrahamJones.com T: 206.381.3303 F: 206.381.3301

I. INTRODUCTION

Petitioner John J. Hadaller ("Hadaller") has a long history of false statements, abusing the judicial process, delay and obfuscation. (Ex. 67, p. 10) Contrary to his representation to this Court, Hadaller has been the litigation instigator-not the victim-in repeated, frivolous lawsuits over the last eight years against Respondent Mayfield Cove Estates Homeowners Association ("the Association"), consisting of his former neighbors and fellow homeowner association members. (CP 354-57) Hadaller has been responsible for five lawsuits and a dozen appellate proceedings leading to this, his last and hopefully final appeal. He has been found "intransigent" (Ex. 67, p. 21) by the trial court, sanctioned multiple times and repeatedly held in contempt of court (Ex. 16, pp. 25-27) (affirmed on appeal), leading the trial court to label his actions "legalized terrorism" (CP 356) and to enjoin him from bringing further lawsuits absent leave of court. Hadaller is a pariah to the neighborhood, homeowner association members and now to the good people of Lewis County and the state who must deal with his continued baseless litigation tactics.

Hadaller's latest appeal is more of the same. Hadaller spends the majority of his submissions regurgitating his view of the five lawsuits, two bench trials and dozens of motions together with multiple appeals1—all of

¹ Hadaller has filed a number of appeals in related litigation. *See Mayfield Cove Estates Homeowners Ass'n v. Hadaller*, 166 Wn. App. 1036, 2012 WL 628206; *Rockwood v. Hadaller*, 168 Wn. App. 1003, 2012 WL 1655946; *Hadaller v. Lowe*, 175 Wn. App. 1062, 2013 WL 3963733.

which he lost after full and fair opportunity to present his case. Hadaller engages in unprofessional name-calling and dilatory actions.² Yet virtually all of it is irrelevant.

Hadaller is improperly attempting to reopen and relitigate proceeding pertaining to multiple hearings, trials and appeals that are finally concluded. The June 10, 2011 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Judgment in this case (CP 322-370) is final and all appellate review was terminated by this Court per the March 14, 2012 mandate entered in Case No. 41818-5-II. Likewise, the December 30, 2009 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Judgment in Case No. 09-2-52-1 between the Association and Hadaller (Ex. 13) is final and all appellate review was terminated by this Court per the December 11, 2012 mandate entered in Case No. 40426-5-II. Accordingly, the papers filed, trial transcripts and exhibits and oral arguments leading up to the findings, conclusion and judgment in these cases are wholly irrelevant to these proceeding.

In a well-reasoned decision, the Court of Appeals affirmed in all respects the ruling of the trial court, concluding that the trial court did not (1) misinterpret RCW 6.13.080(6) by concluding that Hadaller's homestead was subject to the Association's lien; or (2) fail to make a record sufficient

² The Association does not dignify Hadaller's repeated baseless *ad hominen* attacks against it and its counsel, other than to state for the record that none of Hadaller's attacks or factual assertions are justified or correct whatsoever. In particular, Hadaller accuses Respondents and their counsel of "fraud" and "unethical" behavior without any factual or legal basis, let alone any understanding of the gravity of the accusations. Hadaller's unsubstantiated accusations go beyond a mere lack of civility to violate CR 11, and should be severely sanctioned.

to permit meaningful appellate review of its 2011 attorney fee award. The Court of Appeals also declined Hadaller's invitation to revisit its earlier decision in *Mayfield Cove Estates Homeowners Ass'n v. Hadaller*, 166 Wn. App. 1036, 2012 WL 628206.

App. 1030, 2012 WE 028200.

Because Hadaller fails to meet the threshold requirement of RAP 13.4(b), the Association urges the Court to DENY Hadaller's petition.

II. RESPONSE TO ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Hadaller raised three issue on appeal to the Court of Appeals:

- (1) the trial court misinterpreted RCW 6.13.080(6) by concluding that his homestead was subject to the Association's lien because (a) he did not receive proper notice from the Association and (b) the covenant permitting the lien was in place after he acquired title;
- (2) the trial court failed to make a record sufficient to permit meaningful appellate review of its 2011 attorney fee award; and
- the Court of Appeals should review its earlier decision in Mayfield Cove Estates Homeowners Ass'n v. Hadaller, 166 Wn. App. 1036, 2012 WL 628206.

In his petition, Hadaller seeks review of only the first of these issues, abandoning his right to challenge the Court of Appeal's decision on the second and third issues. *See Arnold v. Retirement Systems*, 128 Wn.2d 765, 772 (Wash. 1996). Accordingly, the sole issue raised by Hadaller on appeal is as follows:

Should Hadaller's petition on the issue of whether he received proper notice under RCW 6.13.080(6) that his homestead was subject to the

Association's lien be DENIED under RAP 13.4(b) where (1) the Court of Appeals applied the correct legal standard; (2) the decision does not conflict with the decision of the Court or another division; (3) the issue does not present a significant question of constitutional interest; and (4) the issue is not of substantial public interest?

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The general and procedural facts, along with references to the record, are set forth in detail in the Association's brief to the Court of Appeals, pp. 4-10. Facts relevant to sole issues presented by Hadaller for review are set forth below, as necessary.

IV. AUTHORITY AND ARGUMENT

Pursuant to RAP 13.4(b), a petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

- 1. If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- 2. If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- 3. If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or
- 4. If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

In violation of RAP 13.4(c)(5), Hadaller utterly fails to articulate how the issue identified in his petition meet any of these requirements. Such failure mandates DENIAL of Hadaller's petition without any review of the

underlying merits. But even was such a review to be justified under RAP 13.4(b), Hadaller fails to identify any trial court or Court of Appeals error in their respective decisions.

Hadaller's sole argument in his petition is that trial court and Court of Appeals misinterpreted and improperly applied RCW 6.13.080(6) in concluding that his homestead was subject to the Association's lien because (a) he did not receive proper notice from the Association and (b) the covenant permitting the lien was in place after he acquired title. Hadaller's petition is without basis.

A. THE NOTICE PROVISION OF RCW 6.13.080(6) WAS PROPERTY MET

Hadaller is simply wrong that the trial court "disregarded the intent and effect of the notice provision in RCW 6.13.080(6) or the Court of Appeals erred in degradation of Hadaller's homestead rights by misreading the statute in finding that the Association properly met the notice provision prior to foreclosure. To the contrary, both lower courts correctly held that the statutory language of RCW 6.13.080(6) is unambiguous and properly applied it to the undisputed facts of this case.

RCW 6.13.080(6) provides that the homestead exemption is not available against an execution or forced sale:

On debts secured by a condominium's or homeowner association's lien. In order for an association to be exempt under this provision, the association must have provided a homeowner with notice that nonpayment of the association's assessment may result in foreclosure of the association lien and that the homestead protection under this chapter shall not apply. An association has complied with this notice requirement by mailing the notice, by first-class mail, to the address of the owner's lot or unit. The notice required in this subsection shall be given within thirty days from the date the association learns of a new owner, but in all cases the notice must be given prior to the initiation of a foreclosure. The phrase "learns of a new owner" in this subsection means actual knowledge of the identity of a homeowner acquiring title after June 9, 1988, and does not require that an association affirmatively ascertain the identity of a homeowner. Failure to give the notice specified in this subsection affects an association's lien only for debts accrued up to the time an association complies with the notice provisions under this subsection

The relevant sections misunderstood by Hadaller are highlighted above, namely, that the required notice "shall be given within thirty days from the date the association learns of a new owner, but in all cases the notice must be given prior to the initiation of a foreclosure." In other words, the Association has an obligation to notify a new owner within 30 days OR any other owner prior to initiation of a foreclosure. This is the notice requirement—not, as Hadaller contends, that application of RCW 6.13.080(6) for associations is foreclosed as to any debts prior to the notice. It is only in the situation where an association fails to (1) notify a new owner within 30 days OR (2) any other owner prior to initiation of a foreclosure, that the last highlighted provision is triggered. In such a case, application of RCW 6.13.080(6) "affects an association's lien only for debts accrued up to the time an association complies with the notice provisions under this subsection." In other words, if an association commences action without giving the required notice (either a new owner within 30 days OR any other owner prior to initiation of a foreclosure), it can only pursue outside of the homestead protection debts (i.e., assessments that come due, interest, attorney's fees, costs, etc.) that accumulate from the date of the notice.

Here, there is no dispute that Hadaller is not a new owner. To the contrary, Hadaller acquired title to his property before the Association formed and incorporated. Moreover, Hadaller admits to receiving the Association's December 26, 2012 notice not later than December 29, 2012—well before the foreclosure action was commenced by the Association more than a year later on February 18, 2014. Thus, the statutory notice was clearly met and the trial court properly concluded that the homestead exemption was not available to Hadaller for the debts to the Association secured by the CCR lien.

As an aside, the statutory purpose of this exception to the homestead exemption when it comes to associations is compelling and likely made just for the present type of case involving Hadaller. Here you have a selfprofessed "litigious" individual that has spent the last eight years suing or otherwise disputing everything his fellow association members have done or tried to do, losing every frivolous legal battle, and in the process forcing the Association—at the expense of its other members—to incur huge attorney's fees and cost debts. In addition, Hadaller had defiantly refused, since new board and Association officers were elected, to pay the annual and special Association assessments, causing further financial strain on the other members. Hadaller lived for free on the property from 2009 until he was evidence in 2016, refusing to pay for water, road maintenance, community insurance, or other Association benefits, thereby further burdening others. But Hadaller made himself judgment proof by maintaining huge mortgages against his property, making it virtually impossible for typical creditors to ever collect a dime of their judgments once the \$125,000 homestead exemption was applied. In such situations, the Washington lawmakers found it compelling to carve out an exemption from the homestead exemption to allow governing community bodies such as the Association to force Hadaller to pay the debts he has burdened his fellow members with due to his actions. To find otherwise in this situation would only act to reward the very misbehavior the legislatures sought to curb with this statutory provision.

While not assigned as an error, Hadaller appears to further argue that the RCW 6.13.080(6) notice was somehow ineffective because the RCW 6.13.080(6) exception from the homestead exemption is strictly limited to "assessments"—defined by Hadaller not to include attorney's fees, costs or anything else under an association lien. In short, Hadaller seeks to limit application of the RCW 6.13.080(6) exception based on the use of the word "assessment" in one passage of the statute, namely, the passage requiring that the association provide the homeowner with "notice that nonpayment of the association's **assessment** may result in foreclosure of the association lien and that the homestead protection under this chapter shall not apply." Hadaller misunderstands the plain language of the statute and his reasoning is flawed. RCW 6.13.080(6) provides, expressly, that the homestead exemption is not available against an execution or forced sale "[o]n debts secured by a condominium's or homeowner **association's lien**." (emphasis added) Accordingly, there is no question that the RCW 6.13.080(6) exception applies to everything considered part of the Association's lien. Hadaller cannot deny—and indeed has admitted—that the Association CCRs expressly create a continuing lien and personal obligation as to assessments, interest, costs and reasonable attorney's fees, and further grant the Association the right to enforce its lien via the present judicial foreclosure action. Indeed, Article III, Section 3.2 specifically and unequivocally includes not only assessments and interest, but also attorney's fees and costs as part of the lien:

The annual and special assessments, together with interests, costs and reasonable attorney's fees, shall constitute a continuing lien on the property against which each such assessment, interest, costs and reasonable attorney's fees is applicable. (Ex. 17)

Article V, Section 5.1 confirms that the Association may enforce, "by any proceeding at law or in equity," all "restrictions, conditions, covenants, reservations, assessments, liens, penalties, interest and charges now or hereafter imposed by the provisions of these CCRs." (Id.) The trial court properly ruled, originally and by virtue of denial of Hadaller's multiple motions for reconsideration, that interest, costs and reasonable attorney's fees were secured by and considered part of the Association's lien.

What Hadaller fails to appreciate (or chooses to ignore) is that the passage he now focuses only is limited **only** to the notice required to be given by the association prior to foreclosure. Specifically, the statute requires **only** that the Association provide the homeowner with "notice that nonpayment of the association's assessment may result in foreclosure of the association lien and that the homestead protection under this chapter shall not apply." In other words, associations are not required to provide notice that other amounts that may be secured under the lien as provided by the CCRs—e.g., penalties, interest, attorney's fees or costs—may result in foreclosure; only assessments. Far from limiting the scope of RCW 6.13.080(6) in the manner sought by Hadaller, the language in fact further supports the adequacy of the Association's December 2012 notice in this situation. Hadaller fails to show any abuse of discretion by the trial court or error by the Court of Appeals.

B. HADALLER'S HOMESTEAD RIGHTS ARE NOT SUPERIOR TO THE ASSOCIATION'S CCR LIEN

Hadaller argues that there could be no Association lien subject to RCW 6.13.080(6) that could apply to him and that his homestead rights are superior because (1) he moved into his residence (homestead) onto Segregation Survey Lot 3 in January 2005, and the CCRs that he drafted were not recorded until two years later in May 2007; (Hadaller Brief, pp. 7-8) and (2) there was no Association until it was incorporated as a nonprofit entity with the State of Washington on September 3, 2008 ("Hadaller did not 'acquire title' subject to a HOA nor did a legal HOA exist when he

established his homestead in 2005"). (Id. pp. 9, 25) Hadaller is being disingenuous with the Court, not to mention factually inaccurate.

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